



SCIENTIFIC INSTITUTE OF MOROCCO

Introduction and Objectives :



The **Scientific Institute** (<http://www.israbat.ac.ma/>) is the oldest university research in Morocco. It was created January 24, 1920, under the name of Chérifien Scientific Institute, an institution that has played a fundamental role in the development of scientific research in several fields such as meteorology, geology, geophysics, geomorphology, remote sensing, zoology and botany.

The purpose of the Scientific Institute was set up by royal decree, in the Official Gazettes of 1920, 1921, 1933, 1975 and 2004. The text of this vocation, given below, has not changed since the inception of the SI.

Official Bulletin No. 5222 Thursday, June 17, 2004: Decree No. 2-04-89 of 18 Rabii II 1425 (June 7, 2004): setting the vocation of universities, higher education cycles and the corresponding national diplomas. Chapter III, Article 13

In replacement of Decree No. 2-75-663 of 11 Shawwal 1395 "15/10/1975 establishing the role of academic institutions and the list of degrees which they ensure the preparation and issue:

"The Scientific Institute is to conduct in the field of natural science basic research, particularly with regard to flora, fauna and soil. It is further responsible for systematic inventory of the physical environment and biological, to build collections of a museum of natural history, to bring together the elements of a scientific library and equip laboratories, observatories and stations necessary for his research "

The activities in the SI are primarily focused on fundamental research areas. They cover most areas of the natural sciences, particularly the Earth Science (Earth physics, geology, geomorphology and cartography, remote sensing in

geology) and Life (zoology and animal ecology and botany and plant ecology), and aim to take inventory of all natural resources of Morocco (fauna, flora and subsurface resources), in harmony with national priorities for conservation of natural heritage, the environment, education and development.

SI researchers are also developing work in the context of service delivery, research projects applied to the environment, and great works, both marine and continental.

In addition to their research, the faculty members of the SI are actively involved in university teaching and mentoring young researchers, in close collaboration with other academic institutions of the country, and contribute to education and public awareness in environmental protection.

Directors of the Institute since its inception to the present:

- | | |
|------------------------------|------------------------------------|
| 1. Dr. Liouville (1920-1938) | 6. J.B. Panouse (1962-1966) |
| 2. J. of Lepiney (1938-1942) | 7. H. Msougar (1966-1989) |
| 3. J. Marcais (1942-1946) | 8. D. Najid (1989-1999) |
| 4. L. Pasqualini (1946-1960) | 9. Mr. Saghi (1999-2006) |
| 5. Ch Sauvage (1960-1962) | 10. A. El Hassani (2006 - present) |

- Structures and organization

Proposal on the Establishment of the Council of the University Mohammed V Agdal adopted the new departmental structure of the Scientific Institute as follows:

Department of Botany and Plant Ecology

Department of Earth Sciences (including the merger of the former departments of geology, Earth Physics, mapping and remote sensing and geomorphology)

Department of Zoology and Animal Ecology

Besides the three departments, the Institute has four services directly related to research:

National Museum of Natural History

Publishing and Documentation

Geographic Information System Internet

Finally, the Institute has external services (biological stations and geophysical observatories) based in different regions of the country, and whose creation in 1934 (Observatory Averroes). These observatories and stations are located at:

- Ifrane (Middle Atlas and Rif)
- Averroes 17 km east of Berrchid (Plains and Plateaux Atlantic)
- Tiouine 40 km west of Ouarzazate (High Atlas and Anti-)
- Aouinet Torkoz, in the province of Assa-Zag (southern Morocco)

Observatory AVERROES:

- **Historical**



In 1930, the organization of the Scientific Institute has been extensively reworked, and its weather service expanded into all branches of Earth Physics in giving birth to the Service (or section) of Earth Physics and Meteorology. This new organization had to meet the needs of geophysical and meteorological order. Its functions were determined by a Vizierial Order of 1933 and are located in Casablanca; it includes an observatory (Averroes), the regional stations of meteorology and climatology network. Immediately, work began at the Observatory Averroes, located in the plain of Chaouia on the road to el Gara Berrechid, 17 km from the center of Berrechid. Cellars will be constructed of concrete to a depth of 7 m and will be overcome by any building, all will be topped by a concrete slab independent walls. The pillars which will be deposited independent seismological devices down to a depth of 50 m below the floor of the cellar.

1 January 1934 the first pavilion (cellars seismology, gravity and time) of the Observatory Averroes is completed. Various measurement activities will then be transferred to Casablanca (SPGM seat) at the Observatory Averroes, these include meteorology and actinometry.

- **Seismology**

Until 1937 Morocco does not yet have a seismograph, the Earthquakes were reported by observers of weather stations, the largest shocks were recorded by stations or the Spanish Observatory of Algiers, but many would go unnoticed by result of being away.

In that year, the BCSS had recommended the installation of a seismograph at the observatory Averroes, but various difficulties, including soil compaction, which are built on the pillars, have delayed the final commissioning of the station.



On 1 June 1937, the two horizontal seismographs (NS and EW) Mainka mass of 450 kg (Photo left) began recording, their period is about 12 s, and the records are on paper in black smoke. In the early sixties, a third vertical seismograph cal Grenet-Coulomb-type will be added to the other two. By the mid-seventies, the records will be in ink.

In 2006, as part of cooperation between the Scientific Institute on the one hand and the Universidad Complutense de Madrid (UCM) and the Real Instituto y Observatorio de la Armada in San Fernando (ROA) on the other hand, a broadband station type is installed at the Observatory Averroes. The latter is on the Internet to receive real-time recordings at the Scientific Institute in Rabat and also shared with the Spanish partners of ROA and UCM.

- **Gravimetry**

The first determination of the absolute value of gravitational acceleration g in Morocco in 1933 was made at the Observatory Averroes with a clock which was set at 979,583 mgal. A decade later this value was recalculated using pendulums and was set at 979,562.9 mgal. It is this fundamental value that was used as the starting value of the Gravity Map of Morocco from 1952.

- **Magnetism**

In November 1966, a magnetic observatory was established in Averroes, he was equipped to act as an observatory of conventional type. Measurements of relative variations of the geomagnetic field were made by the Court system associated with a recorder on photographic paper. This is a QHM (Quartz Horizontal Magnetometer) for the horizontal component of the field, a theodolite Chasselon for the angle of declination and a proton magnetometer ELSEC 595 for the total field strength F . Measurements began regular ways from 1967 to 1994.



From April 2003, a new digital acquisition system geomagnetic data has been established.

The control equipment of the geomagnetic field variations and the base lines consist of:

- 1) a magnetometer (fluxgate), mounted on theodolite (Type 010A Zeiss) and equipped with readout electronics, measuring declination and inclination to an accuracy of 1 arcsecond.
- 2) a system that allows recording didd permanent magnetic components of the 5 F , D , X , Y , Z . The sampling interval is 5 s for all data connected to a PC.

- **GPS :**



According cooperation agreements between ROA (Cadiz, Spain) and the SI was a GPS station installed in 2008 at the Observatory Averroes and is connected to the Internet to receive real-time recordings.

Following the recent rehabilitation of the Observatory (2009), it is home work rooms and courtyards, libraries and museums.

Among the tasks that we began to encourage at this observatory, the visit of students of the Primary and Secondary, but also students in biology and STU Universities of Casablanca and El Jadida in order to do practical work on geophysical equipment including.

Observatory IFRANE:



This is one of the most active observatories of the Scientific Institute, first by his situation in the Middle Atlas and also at the center of the city of Ifrane which has a strategic position. The observatory has an area of approximately 7 hectares is dedicated mainly to studies of seismology, although in its infancy (in the 1920s) the climatologie was paramount.

- **Climatology :**

Indeed, the first scientific observations, mainly climatological observatory began to Ifrane in the twenties. He was considered an auxiliary dynamic meteorology station (station auxiliary first order), these observations were for measures and records air pressure, direction and wind strength, temperature, cloud cover and visibility, precipitation, sunshine, etc.. These measures will continue in their part meteorology until the mid-eighties, before the National Directorate of Meteorology is created in Casablanca (1965).

- **Seismology :**



After the destructive earthquake of Agadir (1960) was the precursor of decision makers and therefore the need to create a seismic network has proven to be important and urgent. But it was only from 31 October 1964 that a three-component station coupled electromagnetic seismo-galvanized, short period, type APX, began recording at the observatory of Ifrane. The recordings were made on photographic paper.

From June 2005, a digital station, briefly, like Hathor three, three-component, was installed in Ifrane in addition to the analog station type MEQ 800, while a second seismic station broadband-like (After the Averroes) is now installed at the observatory of Ifrane (IFR). The latter is connected via the Internet at the Scientific Institute in Rabat and transmits in real time.

- **GPS**



In 2009, the GPS belonging to MIT (USA) is transferred from the premises of the University Observatory Al Akhaouayne in Ifrane. It is managed jointly by the Scientific Institute, MIT and EMI (Rabat).

Observatory TIOUINE:

- **Seismology**



The observatory Tiouine was established in 1971 with the installation of a seismograph with a seismometer vertical natural period of 1 second (Willmore Mk II) and ink recording. It was installed in the gallery of an old abandoned mine manganese, but the site is ideal for seismic recordings. Since a di-Zaine years, he was replaced by a station-type MEQ 800.

Given its distance from the grid, the observatory is supplied with electricity by solar panels and a generator. In 2008 through the close collaboration with ROA (Cadiz) and UCM (Madrid), a VBB seismic station (next generation) was installed at Tiouine. A GPS station was installed in 2008

- **Magnetism :**

Station magnetic Tiouine was created after finding that the transient variations of Z are abnormally high at the Observatory Averroes. Although this situation is not peculiar to Averroes, since it is found in observatories located in the neighbourhood of the oceans. This is one of the reasons that led him to create this observatory magnetic situated more than 230 km as the crow flies from the Atlantic Ocean. These recordings will definitely stop by lack of financial resources and the difficulty of finding the recording paper on the market, most observatories are already switched to digital recording.



Observatory AOUINET TORKOZ:

THE RESEARCH STATION presaharic AOUINET TORKOZ



Research Station of presaharic Aouinet Torkoz, former station Indigenous Affairs, consists of a main building and a well-maintained courtyard, surrounded by homes and goumiers of defensive fortifications in ruins the whole thing can cover third of a hectare.

Jean Bertrand Panouse, former director of the Scientific Institute Chérifien, is the founder of the Research Station of presaharic Aouinet Torkoz. He directs the work officially in 1956.

Henri Hollard (geologist) has stayed many times in this station because of the significant geological mapping has established that (almost the only one today) and is the basis of all research in the Anti Atlas.

Tours of the station were not limited only to geologists, biologists, botanists, entomologists, ... of all nationalities: French, Spanish, English, Austrian, American, ... will enjoy the peace and comfort of the resort but also the richness of the region by its fauna and flora.



After a period of "calm" that will extend over two and a half decades (1975-2000), the research station will undergo a re-new science that will start with shipments of geologists that could bring the return of Subcommittee on Devonian Stratigraphy which held some of its seats to Aouinet Torkoz in March 2004 and in May 2004 as a national research meeting on the occasion of the inauguration of new premises by the Governor of the Province of Assa-Zag and Scientific Director of the Institute, together with a group of researchers from Rabat and France for the occasion.

The Scientific Institute intends to develop the medium term a regional museum, documentation center and organize scientific research trips for the promotion of science in this region.

- **Seismology :**



Station Aouinet Torkoz is located in a region that is far from any industrial or agitation ocean. Its position south of the current network is strategic to record seismic activity in this part of Morocco and improve the accuracy of the locations of earthquakes.

The year 1991 saw the installation of the first seismic station in Aouinet Torkoz, but for logistical reasons such as lack of electricity, and distance from the central station of Assa (50 km of track) station Seismological had to stop recording after only three years of commissioning.

In 2009, and as part of a scientific cooperation with the Higher Technical Institute of Lisbon, a new seismic station type very broadband (VBB) was installed at Aouinet Torkoz. A GPS station was also installed through close collaboration with the Scientific Institute Aspen Munich (Germany). The two stations are connected to the Internet via VSAT and broadcast in real time to the SI and the Portuguese and German partners.